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JURISDICTION

1. The claims asserted herein arise under and are pursuant to the First Amendment of the
United States Constitution, 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b)(2}(B), 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and § 17A-2-1031 Utah
Code Annotated. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1367 and 5 U.S.C. §§ 701.

VENUE

2. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). The material acts and
injuries alleged herein occurred within the District of Utah. UTA is a transit district within Utah.
Local 382 of the Amalgamated Transit Union (*local 382”) is incorporated in Utah. John Inglish
resides in Utah. The U.S. Department of Labor (“DOL”) is a federal agency.

THE PARTIES

3. Lisa Burke is a twenty-six-year employee of UTA. She became a TRAX train operator
in the autumn of 1999. Michael Carper is an eleven-year employee of UTA and also became a
TRAX employee in 1999. He is a line and signal worker in the maintenance-of-way department.

4. Defendant UTA is a transit district located in the state of Utah. It is a subdivision of
the state of Utah.

5. Defendant John Inglish is the General Manager of UTA.

UNDERLYING FACTS

6. The notice of claim required by Utah Code Annotated § 63-30-11 was duly served

upon Utah Transit Authority as required by state law.

7. By letter dated October 4, 2004, Utah Transit Authority denied the claims of Plaintiffs.
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8. Plaintiffs have complied with all requirements of the laws of the State of Utah to bring
their state law claims against Utah Transit Authority.

9. The UTA was created by the acquisition of private transit companies primarily utilizing
funds granted to the public entity by the authority of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964
(“UMTA”).

10. The first acquisition occurred in 1969, when the Union Street Railway Company
(formerly Salt Lake City Lines) was acquired by the Salt Lake City Corporation, using $907,419
from UMTA and $453,710 in local taxpayer funds.

11. The companies acquired were private companies and subject to the National Labor
Relations Act (NLRA) of 1935.

12. The employees, working for the private entities, had the right to self-organization, to
form, join or assist labor organizations and to bargain collectively through representatives of their
own choosing.

13. The purpose of Section 13(c) of UMTA includes protecting the collective bargaining
rights of employees possessed when an entity begins to receive grants under UMTA.

14. Section 13(c) is codified at 49 U.S.C. 5333(b). It requires the DOL to protect the
collective bargaining rights of the workers as they existed when federal funds from UMTA were
first utilized.

15. The DOL is required to refuse funds to entities that do not enter into protective
arrangements guaranteeing and protecting the collective bargaining rights of the employees.

16. The DOL has the responsibility to protect employees’ rights. It is not the DOL’s

responsibility to safeguard the incumbent union’s desire to remain as a representative of the
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employees. The incumbent union is defendant Local 382 of the Amalgamated Transit Union.

17. The legislative history of the 1964 UMTA is clear that Congress was concerned that
private employees might lose collective bargaining rights if taken over by a subdivision of a state
that did not allow public employee bargaining rights.

18. UMTA actually prohibited the takeover of private entities unless they were in a severe
financial condition, and only when the rights of the employees would be protected.

19. The legislative history is clear that section 13(c) required the DOL to use funds as an
inducement to get the public entitics to respect employees’ rights.

20. Utah, as well as other states, passed a law giving public transit employces the rights
they would enjoy as private employees, with the exception of the right to strike which was
replaced with binding arbitration. The law is codified at § 17A-2-1031 Utah Code Ann.

21. In 1998, prior to the existence of TRAX, local 382 negotiated a five (5) year contract
instead of the customary three (3) year contract with the bargaining unit members of UTA.

22. The National Labor Relations Board (“NLRB”), through its decisions and regulations,
has created a presumption that three years is the appropriate length of a contract, and that five
year contracts interfere with employees’ rights to choose their own representatives. The right of
employees to choose their own representative is one of the most basic rights an employee
possesses.

23. Nearly all TRAX employees came from the ranks of UTA’s bus personnel.

24. UTA maintains an overall seniority list allowing bus employees to move over to
TRAX rail jobs at any time, upon the completion of training, and “bump” into the TRAX

seniority roster.
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25. In early 2001, TRAX operators circulated a petition demanding that the TRAX
operators’ seniority be protected and presented the petition to local 382. The president of local
382, Steve Booth, ignored the petition.

26. Between 1999 and 2004, many TRAX employees made repeated complaints to local
382 and UTA about the unfairness of TRAX employees not having their seniority protected after
they had performed the difficult task of starting a new light-rail unit.

27. TRAX employees’ preferences have been cancelled out by the much larger group of
bus employees within the bargaining unit, who want to protect their ability to move over to
TRAX at any time and enjoy seniority over TRAX employees who have worked the rail jobs
longer.

28. There is a general hostility by maﬁy bus employees toward the light-rail employees,
who seem to resent the greater prestige that light-rail employees enjoy. Local 382 leadership has
displayed this antagonism since before TRAX began operating.

29. Many bus drivers have attempted to come over to rail after the initial difficult work of
starting TRAX had been accomplished. However, the success rate of bus drivers transitioning to
light-rail operators has been less than 50% due to the increased complexity and skill level
required to be a light-rail operator.

30. The skills and training of electro-mechanics and other service personnel is also much
higher in a light-rail unit than a bus unit. Some jobs, such as those in maintcnance-of-way, bhave
no comparable craft at the bus side of the company.

31. The light-rail employees have a natural desire to have their skills recognized with

increased pay.
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32. It is common practice in other cities to pay a premium to light-rail employees.

33. While increased pay for light-rail employees is in their interest, bus employees
naturally perceive it as a threat to their ability to obtain a raise from the company.

34. As a part of a scheme to retain control of the light-rail employees and to prevent them
from obtaining separate representation, the leadership of local 382 has aggravated this tension by
appealing to the biases of the bus personnel in an attempt to entrench its position and retain its
position as the bargaining unit for light-rail employees.

35. The contract expired in 2003 and about eight months of negotiations followed. The
TRAX employees had no full time representative involved in the negotiations but several bus
side employees were involved in all negotiations.

36. TRAX representation was absent during most of the contract discussions.

37. In the first of two contract votes, which occurred on May 25, 2004, the TRAX union
employees overwhelmingly voted down the contract. It failed to pass on bus side as well.

38. After the contract failed, Steve Booth referred to the TRAX employees as “a gang.”

39. The contract negotiations were restarted but still lacked TRAX representation. The
only concession to the TRAX seniority issue was to include a contractual promise to appoint a
task team to review the situation and make recommendations after a year. The task team would
be made up of members representing all areas of UTA’s bargaining unit which means that TRAX
employees’ seniority issues would be decided in part by bus employees.

40, The task team would be overseen by John Inglish and Steve Booth, who had both
previously refused to address the problem and were responsible for it festering for five years.

41. This failure of local 382 to protect the seniority of its TRAX members caused Lisa
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Burke to begin circulating a petition stating that local 382 did not represent the interests of
TRAX employees and that UTA had negotiated with an inappropriate bargaining unit. It further
stated that if the contract passed, TRAX employees would explore all their options regarding
forming a new union.

42. About half the TRAX employees signed the petition within 48 hours. There were
only a handful of refusals. Due to time constraints not everyone at TRAX was approached to
sign.

43. The petition was presented to UTA’s general counsel, Katherine Pett, just days before
the second contract vote. Katherine Pett ignored the petition.

44. The contract was voted down at TRAX again but passed company wide. Counsel for
Lisa Burke notified Katherine Pett that if the contract were ratified there would likely be a court
challenge.

45. UTA had their board of directors ratify the contract, apparently without disclosing
that there could be legal problems.

46. Lisa Burke and Michael Carper attempted to put up several posters on TRAX
property. The posters were provided by the NLRB and contained information about responsible
conduct during labor disputes. They were government documents and advised employees,
employers and unions to abide by the law.

47. Katherine Pett decreed that since the NLRB had no jurisdiction in this dispute the
posters had to be removed. Counsel for Lisa Burke immediately informed Katherine Pett that
since UTA is a public entity and local 382 is allowed to post information in every division that

UTA must give the dissident group equal access to post information.
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48. Although counsel told Katherine Pett that it is a clear violation of the First
Amendment, she did not respond. To date, no space has been made available to post information
concerning this dispute.

49. Tn addition to local 382 having space to post information, other individuals and
groups have been allowed to post information. However, plaintiffs’ repeated requests for space
have been denied.

50. After the first contract vote failed, UTA offered a $650 bonus if the union members
passed the contract on the second vote.

51. UTA General Manager John Inglish sent a letter to all UTA bargaining unit members,
praising local 382 negotiators and pointing out that it was a good tentative agreement. He said
there was a financial incentive to pass the agreements, and suggested that certain issues could be
resolved later. He did not specifically address the issue of seniority although it had been the
biggest single reason TRAX had voted against the contract.

52. The evening before the second contract vote, local 382 president Steve Booth and a
couple of his associates came over to the TRAX facility and began to intimidate and menace
employees that were known to have opposed the contract and had signed the petition.

53. One employee was isolated and intimidated. His ordeal ended only when TRAX
management escorted Steve Booth and what could correctly be described as *“a goon-squad™ off
the premises. This was done under the personal orders of Paul O’Brien, the director of
operations for the TRAX division.

54. Despite the interference of the company through their letter, and the offer of a bonus,

and despite the physical intimidation carried out by representatives of local 382, the union
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members of TRAX voted against the second contract.

55. The intimidation tactics of Local 382’s continue to this date. Recently a female
TRAX employee was told by a union official that she was on Steve’s Booth’s “hit list” for
bringing local 382’s behavior to the attention of a representative of the Amalgamated Transit
Union International’s (“ATU”) Washington D.C. headquarters. This representative of the ATU,
Don Hansen, is currently investigating the alleged misconduct by local 382.

56. The TRAX facilities are separated geographically by miles from the bus operations.

57. The TRAX employees have their own supervisors.

58. The TRAX supervisors in turn answer to Paul O’Brien, director of operations of
TRAX.

59. The chain of command is distinct for the bus and train operations until they reach
John Inglish, who controls all of UTA.

60. TRAX employees number approximately 150 while bus employees number
approximately 1000.

61. Local 382 president, Steve Booth, has for years told union members that they do not
have binding arbitration and cannot demand that the company submit to it in contract disputes.
This statement is untrue.

62. Binding arbitration is provided to UTA’s bargaining unit members through the
protective arrangements submitted to the DOL. Local 382 helped negotiate these arrangements.

63. Binding arbitration is clearly mandated by Utah state statute in any dispute that cannot
be resolved. It replaces the right to strike.

64. The ATU has gone to court many times in other locations to protect and enforce the
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right to binding arbitration.

65. TRAX employees have effectively been denied representation by local 382, they have
paid full dues to the said union without receiving the benefits which are to be expected from
payment of such dues.

66. The failure of Local 382 to represent the interests of TRAX operators has denied to
TRAX operators the right to bargain for seniority rights, higher wages and other benefits which
would have come to them had they been able to bargain separately as TRAX employees.

67. The actions of defendants have damaged the named plaintiffs and each individual
member of the alleged class in an amount to be determined at trial by the fact-finder in this case.
CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

68. This action is brought as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, brought on behalf of named representatives and all persons similarly situated.

69. This action is properly maintainable as a class action.

70. The employees arc so numerous that joinder of all members is impractical.

71. There are common questions of law and fact involved herein that predominate over
any questions affecting only individual members of the classes. These common questions of law
and fact include:

(D Whether defendants’ acts as alleged herein violated the First Amendment.
(11) Whether the defendants’ acts violate 42 U.S.C. § 1983; and

(iii)  Whether defendants acts violate Utah law § 17A-2-1031; and

(iv)  Whether defendants’ acts violate Section 13(c) of UMTA; and

(v) Whether local 382 is an appropriate bargaining unit for TRAX employees.

10
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(vi}  The amount of union dues that were paid without a corresponding benefit
conferred on the union members.

(vii) The premium that other transit districts confer on the higher skilled rail-
employees compared to bus employees.

72. Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the other TRAX employees.

73. The damages suffered by plaintiffs and all other class members arise from and were
caused by the same violations and course of conduct. Plaintiffs do not have interests antagonistic
to, or in conflict with, the interests of the class.

74. Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the classes
and have retained competent counsel experienced in class action and employment litigation to
vigorously prosecute this action.

75. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy. Plaintiffs know of no difficulty to be encountered in managing
this action that would preclude its maintenance as a class action. Furthermore, because the
damages suffered by individual members of the classes may be relatively small, the expense and
burden of individual litigation make it impracticable for the members of the classes to seck
redress individually for the wrongs they have suffered.

76. Notice can be provided to class members via a combination of published notice and
first class mail using techniques and forms of notice similar to those customarily used in class

actions.

11
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COUNT1
(For Violations of the First Amendment Rights of Free Speech and Association as applied
by the Fourteenth Amendment, and denial of due process Creating a Claim Under 42
U.S.C. Section 1983)

77. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege the preceding paragraphs as though
fully set forth herein. This count is asserted against all UTA and John Inglish personally.

78. This claim is brought on behalf of all class members.

A. SPEECH CLAIMS

79. The First Amendment states that: “Congress shall make no law respecting an
establishment of religion, or prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of
speech, or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press; or the right of the people peaceably
to assemble, and to Petition the Government for a redress of grievances.”

80. UTA allows company employees to post personal messages on their bulletin boards
and provides a bulletin board to Local 382.

81. After the employees had provided petitions to UTA that informed the company that 1t
was negotiating with an inappropriate bargaining unit, persistent rumors arose that the company
might terminate the signers of the petition.

82. In order to counter these rumors, several TRAX employees put up posters containing
information about their rights and responsibilities in a labor dispute. The NLRA guarantees these
rights. Representatives of the NLRB provided these posters. The TRAX employees explained to
their co-workers that the NLRA did not apply to them as a public entity, but they had similar

rights under Utah law.

12
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83. Ignoring the First Amendment, Katherine Pett, general counsel for UTA, ordered that
the posters be removed, justifying their removal due to the inapplicability of the NLRA. The
posters were removed by a TRAX manager acting under the color of law and a policy of UTA set
by Katherine Pett.

84. Counsel for the dissident employees informed Katherine Pett by e-mail of the First
Amendment violation and demanded equal access to the employees as afforded to local 382. The
¢-mail went unanswered.

85. The employees made several more requests to counter scare stories with requests for
bulletin board space to post responsible material and information. These requests were denied by
TRAX management who stated that they could not overrule policy set by Katherine Pett.

86. A TRAX employee personally notified John Inglish that Katherine Pett refused to talk
to, or have any contact with, the attomey representing the dissidents.

B. RIGHT OF ASSOCIATION AND DUE PROCESS CLAIMS

87. UTA has refused to bargain with an appropriate bargaining unit of TRAX employees.

88. Section 17A-2-1031 of Utah state law requires that UTA negotiate with the appropriate
bargaining unit.

89. Federal law requires that the DOL protect the bargaining rights of private employees
that have become public employees due to the expenditure of funds from the Urban Mass
Transportation Act.

90. UTA and John Inglish have adopted policies chilling the TRAX employees’ right to

free association by denying them the benefit of that association, and by impeding the workers’

efforts to organize a new association.

13
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91. After having knowledge that the TRAX employees no longer wanted to be in the same
bargaining unit as the bus employees, UTA sent a letter to all employees praising the work of the
existing union, local 382.

92. Shortly after the petition had been presented to UTA, John Inglish engaged in
intimidating behavior by riding a train and telling the train operator that he preferred to have only
one union. He further stated to another train operator that since both bus and TRAX operators
work hard, they should be paid the same. John Inglish chose to ride trains that ran immediately
before and after the one operated by the employee who is the chief organizer of the putative union.
This fact was noted by the employees and perceived as an attempt to intimidate the workers. The
driver of train was, in fact, intimidated and stated to the chief organizer that he wasn’t sure that 1t
was wise to proceed with the organizing effort.

93. UTA has signed a contract with the inappropriate bargaining unit, which prohibits it
from negotiating with any other group about wages, benefits and working conditions of TRAX
employees.

94. Persuasive authority has stated that a government entity that has a duty to negotiate
with an appropriate bargaining unit violates the First Amendment and is subject to a Section 1983
claim, if they refuse to bargain with the appropriate bargaining unit.

95. UTA has denied the TRAX employees their property and/or liberty interests under
Utah Code ANN. Section 17A-2-1031 without due process and thus has violated the provisions of
42 U.S.C. Section 1983.

96. By reason of the forgoing, defendants have violated the First Amendment, Fifth Amendment

and Fourteenth of the Constitution and 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 and are liable to plaintiffs. Each

14
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plaintiff has been damaged as a direct and proximate resuit of such violations, in a total amount to
be determined at trial, as well as for costs and attorney fees incurred in bringing this action.
COUNT 11
(For Violations of the Requirements of Section 13 Against UTA)
97. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference and reallege the preceding paragraphs as though
fully set forth herein. This Count is asserted against UTA.
98. Section 13(c) as codified as 49 U.S.C. §5333(b) states that:
(1) As a condition of financial assistance under sections 5307-5312, 5318(d),
5323(a)(1),(b), (d), and (e), 5328, 5337, and 5338(b) of this title the interests of
employees affected by the assistance shall be protected under arrangements
the Secretary of Labor concludes are fair and equitable. The agreement
granting the assistance under sections 5307-5312, 5318(d), 5323(a)(1).(b), (d),
and (e), 5328, 5337, and 5338(b) shall specify the arrangements.
(2) Arrangements under this subsection shall include the provisions that may be
necessary for—
(A) the preservation of rights, privileges, and benefits (including
continuation of pension rights and benefits} under existing collective
bargaining agreements or otherwise;
(B) the continuation of collective bargaining rights;
(C) the protection of individual employees against a worsening of their
positions related to employment;

(D) assurances of employment to employees of acquired mass

15
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transportation systems;

(E) assurances of priority of re-employment of employees whose

employment is ended or who are laid off; and
(3) Arrangements under this subsection shall provide benefits at least equal to
benefits established under section 11326 of this title. § 13(c), 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b)
(emphasis added).

99. UTA has failed to protect employees’ rights as it agreed to when it first obtained
federal funds in 1969.

100. By reason of the forgoing, defendants have violated the plaintiffs’ rights under Utah
law and are liable to plaintiffs, each of whom has been damaged as a direct and proximate result
of such violations, in a total amount to be determined at trial, as well as for attorney fees.

COUNT III
(Claim Against UTA For Violations of Section 17A-2-1031. Supplemental J urisdiction
Under 28 U.S.C. § 1367 and Federal Due Process Rights)

101. Plaintiffs’ repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained above as though
fully set forth herein.

102. Utah Code ANN. § 17A-2-1031 (2004) provides that:

Employees of any public transit established and operated by the district shall have
the right to self-organization, to form, join, or assist labor organizations and to
bargain collectively through representation of their own choosing provided,
however, that such employees and labor organizations shall not have the right to

join in any strike against such public transit system. The district shall recognize

16
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and bargain exclusively with any labor organization representing a majority of its
employees in an appropriate unit with respect to wages, salaries, hours, working
conditions, and welfare and pension and retirement provisions, and, upon reaching
agreement with such labor organization, to enter into and execute a written contract
incorporating therein the agreements so reached.

103. Defendants violated section 17A-2-103 1in that they:
a) Refused to allow the TRAX employees to choose own their representatives;
b) Negotiated with an inappropriate bargaining unit;
¢) Negotiated a contract with an inappropriate bargaining unit purporting to bind
the TRAX employees;
d) Ratified the contract after being notified by TRAX employees that local 382 was
not an appropriate bargaining unit for them;
¢) Refused to discuss the rights of the employees with their counsel both before
and after the contract was ratified;
f) Engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business that operated to deprive
employees of their state statutory rights without any due process.

104. On August 11, 2004, the plaintiffs served on Katherine Pett a notice of claim for the

violation of 17A-2-1031.
105. On October 4, 2004, Katherine Pett denied the claim asserting that the ATU was an
appropriate bargaining unit.
106. The denial letter failed to address how a bargaining unit with massive internal

dissention and employees of disparate skill levels could be appropriate.

17
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107. As a direct and proximate result of these defendants” wrongful conduct, defendants
have violated the plaintiffs’ rights under Utah law and are liable to plaintiffs, each of whom has
been damaged as a direct and proximate result of such violations, in a total amount to be
determined at trial, as well as for attorney fees and costs expended in prosecuting this action.

COUNT IV
(For Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendant Local 382, Supplemental Jurisdiction
Under 28 U.S.C. § 1367)

108. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained above as though
fully set forth herein.

109. Local 382 has accepted and demanded dues from TRAX union members to act as
their agent in contract negotiations with UTA.

110. A major concern of the TRAX employees was the protection of their seniority as
evidence by a petition presented to local 382 in 2001 and as continuously verbally expressed to
union representatives.

111. Bus employees have had five years to transfer to TRAX with their seniority intact.
Despite this, only a small percentage of the bus employees have transferred to the TRAX division.

112. Local 382 and its president, Steve Booth, have incited bus employees against TRAX
employees creating a division among members of the union to the detriment and damage of the
TRAX operators.

113. Unions officials, including Steve Booth, have engaged in belittling and intimidating
behavior against TRAX employees.

114. The Union has used this divide to maintain power and in the case of the last contract

18
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procure an affirmative vote on a contract it had negotiated.

115. By reason of the forgoing, defendant local 382 has violated its fiduciary duty to the
TRAX employees and is liable to plaintiffs, each of whom has been damaged as a direct and
proximate result of such violations, in a total amount to be determined at trial, as well as for
attorney fees and court costs incurred in prosecuting this action.

COUNT V
(Failure to Perform Statutory Duty Pursuant to the APA 5 U.S.C. §§ 701 and Section 13
Against Department of Labor.)

116. A primary purpose of Section 13(c) was to protect the bargaining rights of workers.
The legislative history of the law makes it clear that the only right that the framers of the
legislation thought might be lost was the right to strike.

117. In order to be eligible for federal funds, some states, including Utah passed legislation
substituting binding arbitration for the ability to strike.

118. Section 13(c) as codified at 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) states that:

(1) As a condition of financial assistance under sections 5307-5312, 5318(d),
5323(a)(1),(b), (d), and (e), 5328, 5337, and 5338(b) of this title the interests of
employees affected by the assistance shall be protected under arrangements
the Secretary of Labor concludes are fair and equitable. The agreement
granting the assistance under sections 5307-5312, 5318(d), 5323(a)(1),(b), (d),
and (e), 5328, 5337, and 5338(Db) shall specify the arrangements.

(2) Arrangements under this subsection shall include the provisions that may be

necessary for—

19
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a) the preservation of rights, privileges, and benefits (including
continuation of pension rights and benefits) under existing collective
bargaining agreements or otherwise;
b) the continuation of collective bargaining rights;
¢) the protection of individual employees against a worsening of their
positions related to employment,
d) assurances of employment to employees of acquired mass transportation
systems;
e) assurances of priority of re-employment of employees whose
employment is ended or who are laid off; and
(3) Arrangements under this subsection shall provide benefits at least equal to
benefits established under section 11326 of this title.§ 13(c), 49 U.S.C. §5333(b)
{emphasis added).
119. DOL has the statutory duty to protect employees’ collective bargaining rights from
adverse changes due to the expenditure of UMTA funds.
120. Prior to the expenditure of UMTA funds to purchase private transit companies the
employees had the right to choose their own representative and to change the representative.
121. On September 7, 2004, the TRAX employees filed a complaint with the DOL director
of statutory enforcement alleging that UTA was denying the TRAX employees the most
fundamental bargaining right, the right to choose their own representative.
122. On September 28, 2004, the DOL. denied that it had jurisdiction primarily relying on

inapplicable precedent, which addressed the rights of workers under 13(c) when a public entity

20
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receives funds under UMTA.

123. Counsel for the TRAX employees informed DOL through Kelly Andrews, Director of
Statutory Programs, that UTA used UMTA funds to purchase private companies, and also asked
whether an appeals process existed to challenge the decision to take no action to preserve the right
to choose a representative for collective bargaining.

124. Counsel was informed that no in-house appeal was possible but the information
would be passed along to the Department of Justice for their review.

125. To date, DOL has not indicated any willingness to reverse the prior decision.

126. The inaction by DOL is a total abdication of their statutory duty to protect employees’
collective bargaining rights.

127. The failure of DOL to carry out their statutory duty to protect the TRAX workers has
caused damage to the plaintiffs in an amount to be determined at trial, and has denied to them
rights and remedies granted and guaranteed under state and federal law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEY

WHEREFORE, The plaintiffs pray that the Court grant judgment to plaintiffs, and against
the defendants and each of them as follows:

1. Declaring this action to be a plaintiff’s class action properly maintained pursuant to
Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and certifying plaintiffs as class representatives.

2. That the Court enter an Order enjoining the DOL from disbursing funds to Utah Transit
Authority under the UMTA for the pendency of this action.

3. That the Court enter an Order Enjoining local 382 of the ATU from intimidating TRAX

employees.
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represented by a union of their choosing.

5 That the Court enter an Order Prohibiting UTA from transferring employees from bus to
TRAX without respecting TRAX seniority for the pendency of this action.

6. That the Court enter an Order requiring Local 382 to account for all dues collected from
TRAX employees since the creation of TRAX and to refund to plaintiff class members that
portion of the collected dues which have not been used specifically for the benefit of TRAX
employees.

7. That plaintiffs be awarded plaintiffs’ and the class” damages, as shown by the evidence
at trial, and any statutory compensation to which they may be entitled, against each defendant,
jointly and severally, in an amount to be determined at trial plus pre-judgment interest thereon.

8. That plaintiffs and class members be awarded the costs and expenses of this litigation,
including reasonable attorneys” fees, and experts’ fees and other costs and disbursements; and

9. That the Court award to plaintiffs and the class such other and further relief as appears
just and proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiffs herewith demand trial by jury on all issues which may lawfully be submitted to
the jury for decision in this matter.
DATED this 22nd day of October, 2004,

Mel S. Martin, P.C.

f///ﬁ 4

Edward T. Wells
Mel S. Martin
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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Plaintiis Address
276 W. Freedom Lane
Heber City, Utah 84032
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